Public Document Pack

Children, Education and
Skills Sub Committee
Wednesday, 1 September 2021
To be held on Thursday, 9 September 2021 in the Council Chamber, Quadrant, The
Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00
pm. (Due to Covid precautions, members of the public wishing to attend should notify the
contact officer by emailing: democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk)
Agenda
Item
1.

Page

Apologies for absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

Appointment of substitutes
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members for
the meeting.

3.

To receive any declarations of interest
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that
interest.
You are also requested to complete the Declarations of Interests card
available at the meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer
before leaving the meeting.
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement
to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the
agenda.

4.

Minutes

5 - 14

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2021
5.

Children's Readiness for School Response Report and Action Plan
To note the Cabinet Response to the Children, Education and Skills

Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and receive information about it.
North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need.
We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large
print and alternative languages.

Agenda
Item

Page
Sub-Group Report on Children’s Readiness for School and the Action
Plan considered by Cabinet.
To follow.

6.

Education Update - Covid Recovery

15 - 24

To receive an update on the academic year 2020/2021, the
work of Local Authority Officers in their support of schools, and any
impact seen in pupils’ attainment and wellbeing because of COVID
7.

Poverty Intervention Fund

25 - 30

To receive an update on the Poverty Intervention Fund
Circulation overleaf …

Members of the Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee
Councillor Joanne Cassidy
Councillor Chris Johnston
Councillor Pam McIntyre
Councillor Andy Newman
Councillor Erin Parker-Leonard
Councillor Matthew Thirlaway (Chair)
Mr Stephen Fallon
Mrs Michelle Ord
Rev Michael Vine

Councillor Hannah Johnson (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Maureen Madden
Councillor Jim Montague
Councillor Pat Oliver
Councillor Steven Phillips
Councillor Matt Wilson

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee
8 July 2021

Present:

Councillor M Thirlaway (Chair)
Councillor J Cassidy, HP Johnson, C Johnston, M Madden,
P McIntyre, J Montague, A Newman, P Oliver, E ParkerLeonard, S Phillips and M Wilson.
Rev M Vine - Church Representative
Apologies: Mrs M Ord

The Chair thanked Councillor Pat Oliver for all her work as Deputy Chair of the Sub-Committee
and wished her well in her new role.
CES1/21

Substitute Members

There were no substitute members
CES2/21

Declarations of Interest

Councillor E Parker-Leonard declared a registerable personal interest in Item 6 Safeguarding
Children and Young people in the Covid Pandemic, as she was a foster carer with another
local authority.

CES3/21

Minutes

Resolved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 March 2021 be confirmed and
signed by the Chair.

CES4/21

Safeguarding Children and Young People in the Covid-19 Pandemic

The Assistant Director Safeguarding and Children’s Services reported that since September
2020 services had largely returned to normal but underpinned by risk assessments to keep
children, families and staff safe and prevent transmission of Covid. The staff group had worked
with incredible commitment and dedication and had maintained on the whole, high standards
of practice and performance.
Children’s Homes had continued to offer warmth, care and support to children in care. They
had to contend with using PPE and additional restrictions whilst at the same time supporting
children and young people experiencing the pandemic. The teams have been able to cover the
gaps where staff members were unable to continue in their role due to shielding or specific
vulnerabilities, with other staff from across the service identified to assist.
Due to the additional health complexities the residential short break service was reduced to keep

Page 5

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

children safe. Instead of offering short breaks to 5 children a night, the service was offered to 2
children a night and then on a risk assessed basis around need and complexity. However, by April
2021, the offer of overnight short breaks was to all children accessing the services. The service has
been valued highly by families especially as some of the children were not in school.
The additional vulnerabilities of Care Leavers was recognised, particularly around isolation and so
support was increased over the last year. This was not only in terms of visits and contact but also
practical support such as food, toiletries, and activities. Care Leavers have been
disproportionately impacted in terms of employment. Many Care leavers found employment in the
retail and services sectors, often this work was casual in nature and as such their employment
ended without protection. There was a lot of work to do to try and address the number of young
people not in education, employment and training (NEET) in the care experienced population
and the Service was working with colleagues in adult learning to finalise plans.
The New Belongings survey was completed during lockdown and the results outlined 10 ‘Bright
Spots’ of practice (good practice) and a number of areas to focus on:  Having a good friend
 Having a trusted person
 Coping financially
 Experience anxiety
 Happy with appearance
Young people have been involved in the development of an action plan and delivery of the action
plan has been adopted as one of the priorities for the Corporate Parenting Forum.
The Assistant Director Safeguarding and Children’s Services reported that it had been a
challenging time for the Fostering community, but they had been amazing in their support to
children in their care. As reported in September 2020, it remained the case that no Foster
Carers had decided to end their care of children as a result of the pandemic. They have
continued to offer placements to children even when at times of crisis, there may have been
worries about infection risks and this was evidence of the absolute commitment of Foster Carers
to children in care. Two valued Foster Carers have been lost to Covid and this has caused great
sadness across the community.
Fostering Fortnight has just been celebrated and all Foster Carers have been thanked for their
incredible work with a card and handmade candle.
The Fostering Team have provided high levels of support to both mainstream carers and
connected carers and received positive feedback in a recent Fostering Survey.
In reply to a question regarding feedback in the recent Survey from Foster Carers who were
not so satisfied, it was confirmed that virtual training did not suit some Foster Carers and
others missed the face to face peer support from coffee mornings and soft play training events.
In April 2021 the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) returned to the office on a rota basis.
The MASH is critical to decision making for children and young people within the Borough and
while the service has worked well remotely, it was recognised that the quality of the
discussion, information sharing and decision making across the partners was enhanced
by face to face working.
At the end of March 2021, there has been an increase in referrals compared to 2019/2020.
The rate of referrals per 10,000 at the end of 2020/2021 was 404.3, higher than the March 2020
figure of 378.7. The England rate for 19/20 was 534, and Statistical Neighbours, 603.

Page 6

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

Given the nature of the work, direct face-to-face work with children, young people, parents
and carers is core to Social Work and Early Help practice in North Tyneside. As reported in
September 2020, the pandemic has, by necessity, required new ways of working.
Practitioners responded quickly to the changing environment and have been incredibly
creative and innovative when restrictions have been in place. While the Service in the
main is face to face, a blended approach with virtual contact and virtual meetings
supports face to face work.
The performance data for 2020/2021 compared to the previous year, has shown the following: 






A 24.2% increase in early help plans.
An increase of almost 200 children being supported by the statutory social work teams.
An increase of 24.7% in children on child protection plans.
Stability in children in care numbers.
At the end of March 2021, 98.2% of children who were subject to a child protection
plan had been visited within timescales. (167out of 170children).
90% of Children in Care reviews held within timescales.

Members considered if the increase in children on child protection plans was a result of the
pandemic and it was noted that plans had been stable over the last 4-5 years but since
November 2020 there had been an increase in children with complex circumstances due to
the pandemic.

The Ready for School nursery at the Riverside Centre has been operational throughout the
pandemic providing childcare for vulnerable children and the children of key workers.
In June 2021 there was an outbreak of Covid and the Nursery was closed and staff
immediately moved to a virtual outreach support offer so that families were all receiving
support.
The safe and appropriate delivery of family time has been a particular challenge.
Children in Care have a legal right, save in exceptional circumstances, to family time with
their parents and siblings. Family time inevitably means bringing together multiple households
and a face-to-face family time offer, has been maintained subject to robust risk assessments,
where possible.
The Youth Justice Service has continued to deliver services to young people and families
throughout the pandemic both face to face and virtual and in April 2021 had an HMIP inspection
of the Youth Offending service under Covid restrictions. The report is due for publication
in the week commencing 26 July 2021.
North Tyneside Children’s Services are a Partner in Practice with the Department for Education.
Through this arrangement, the Service were approached to do some further study and analysis
around lessons learnt from working during the pandemic, that could be shared and used across the
sector. In partnership with Professor Eileen Munro, Professor Andrew Turnell and Marie Devine,
the Service have worked with three other local authorities to explore: -

Page 7

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee
What helps and hinders practitioners build safety through naturally connected
networks during a pandemic when professional contact is limited?

Under the conditions of COVID-19, direct professional involvement with families and
children in statutory social care services has been significantly reduced. This led to
local authorities having to think about how they can work with, and support, children,
young people and their families in different ways.
The study was small in size and consequently the findings are tentative but do support the
hypothesis that the use of networks makes a worthwhile contribution to improving children’s
safety and wellbeing. Alongside the study, an Executive summary from a local authority
perspective around the learning has been published and there are a series of events and
tools that the Service will produce to share across the sector to disseminate the learning.
The pandemic has brought with it an increase in demand for Children’s services and an
increase in the complexity of issues. This is putting pressure on the service and in particular
on the staff teams. The Service are increasing resources to try and met this demand, but the
recruitment market is challenging at this time.
To support staff, weekly communication and regular sessions with the Assistant Director and a
range of workshops on trauma, resilience and self-care have been introduced. These have
all been welcomed and appreciated by the teams and across the Service they continue to
feedback that they have good access to support and supervision and that managers are
visible and accessible.
On 28 June 2021, the Safe and Supported social work teams returned to the office
as it was recognised that learning, especially for newly qualified staff has been impacted
by not being alongside their more experienced colleagues, and this has been a key driver for
returning to some office working. Other teams will follow dependant on available office space
and social distancing.
The Children’s Centres will also open in time for the summer holidays so that a range of
activities to support children and families can be delivered during the summer break.
In reply to a question it was confirmed that where the Service had the staff, families
with children with special needs were supported in their homes.
A Member asked if the Service was at full strength and it was confirmed that with the exception
of Family time, the Service had largely returned to the full-service offer and statutory visits were
all face to face.
Members commended staff for all the work undertaken during the pandemic in maintaining
safe services.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Safeguarding and Children’s Services for the
informative report and for attendance at the meeting.

Page 8

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

CES5/21

The Health of Young People under 18 in the Borough

The Sub-Committee considered a presentation by the Director of Public Health on
understanding health inequalities and the health of young people in the Borough.
It was noted that:
-

The Marmot Review had evidenced that mortality and morbidity for children and
young people was preventable

-

Inequalities in health had a significant and negative impact on the health and well
being of children – a low birth weight baby was five times more likely to die as an
infant than those of normal birth weight

-

Overweight, obese children were at a greater risk of poorer attainment

-

Poverty was a key issue and associated with negative outcomes and child poverty in
the Riverside ward was 34.3% compared to 5.3% in St Mary’s ward

-

Covid 19 had exposed and amplified the existing inequalities facing children and the
wider effects of Covid had disproportionately and negatively affected vulnerable
children

-

In terms of education and the impact of Covid, school attendance was very important
for children and young people and critical to reduce health inequalities

-

The Child Health Profile for North Tyneside in March 2021 (copies of which had been
circulated at the meeting) provided a good snapshot of child health in the area and
overall comparing local indicators with England averages, the health and well being of
children in North Tyneside was mixed.

-

The infant mortality rate was similar to England with an average of 8 infants dying
before age 1 each year. Recently there have been 4 child deaths (1-17 year olds)
each year on average

-

By 6-8 weeks after birth, 42.2% of mothers were still breastfeeding and this was one
of the biggest protectors against poverty and promoted by the Health Visiting Service
Programme

-

The levels of child obesity compared with the English average were worse, with
25.8% of children in Reception class and 36.2% of children in Year 6 who have
excess weight and was a concern in some localities.

-

Covid 19 had impacted on nutrition and physical activity as the less affluent were less
likely to eat well and exercise more

-

In relation to young people’s mental health, nationally the rate of young people being
admitted to hospital as a result of self harm was increasing and this was also the case
for North Tyneside. Lockdowns have had an impact with the withdrawal of structure
and support and there has been an increase in the demand for Counselling services
and referrals to the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS).

-

Dental health was an issue with 12.7% of 5 year olds with experience of dental decay

Page 9

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

-

In North Tyneside there were significant improvements in teenage pregnancy rates
and fewer young people taking up smoking

-

However there were clear inequalities in health outcomes and to address health
inequalities the wider determinants of health needed to be addressed by optimising
the conditions

The Sub-Committee discussed the issues raised in the presentation and in the course of
discussion raised the following points:
-

Schools had been asked to remain open during the lockdowns for the children of key
workers and vulnerable pupils and some pupils had benefitted from smaller class
sizes which was a positive aspect.

-

The strategy for children and young people’s mental health was being refreshed due
to Covid and the Mental Health First Aid Project would examine the gaps and offer
more time for teaching about mental and physical health and well being and more
support for parents and more staff would also be involved in mental health advice,
guidance and signposting

-

Local Authority officers began the first phase of a pilot project to achieve an ambition
to train staff and pupils from North Tyneside schools in mental health awareness, with
two staff trained as mental health first aiders from each school. The intention behind
this universal offer, was to ensure there was a shared language and understanding of
the impact of poor mental ill-health. Thus, enabling all staff to provide appropriate
responses to all pupils at the point of need

-

Reference was made to the trend of young people taking up vaping and it was noted
that currently there were no figures on a local level and no evidence to suggest that
young people would go on to use other drugs.

-

With regard to the statistics on children living in poverty it was confirmed that these
included in work poverty and average incomes and in terms of poverty intervention,
the creation of secure jobs with decent salaries would be important.

-

Concerns were expressed that mental health support was chronically underfunded
and that a child with mental health needs would be likely to carry on with the problem
into adulthood.

The Chair thanked the Director of Public Health for the informative presentation and for
attendance at the meeting.
CES6/21

Serious Case Review

The Sub-Committee considered a Report on the learning from Serious Case Review (SCR)
Jasmine published in April 2021
The SCR had been commissioned in July 2019 by North Tyneside Safeguarding Board
(NTSCB) in line with statutory guidance at that time. An Independent Reviewer was
commissioned to facilitate the review process and complete the report. The Review was

Page 10

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

completed in September 2020 but could not be published until criminal proceedings had
concluded.
The purpose of a SCR was to undertake a rigorous analysis of the contact Jasmine and her
family had with services to try and understand what happened and why. The organisations
responsible for services could then identify any lessons to be learnt which could be used to
improve services and reduce any future risk of harm to children and young people.
The Safeguarding Partners were resolved to act on the learning and a detailed action plan
was in place which identified achievable and measurable actions to act on the learning
identified in the Review.
Members discussed the issues raised in the Report and in the course of the discussion raised
the following points:

-

A Member expressed concern that the perpetrator had been allowed to go back to the
family home, that the child had been let down by Services and that the sexual abuse
would impact on the child and family and affect the child’s mental health.
The Review found that Jasmine’s allegation against P was taken seriously, discussed
with agency partners and actions taken in line with child protection procedures.
However, Jasmine’s retraction of her allegation and the response to it was not
discussed with agency partners and was not subject to the same degree of scrutiny.
Her refusal to cooperate and the letter she sent stating she had made up the abuse did
not spark healthy skepticism and was not sufficiently explored with her. The important
role of trusted relationships with vulnerable children and young people to enable them
to talk about their experiences was highlighted.
It was noted that to support practitioners in this complex area of work the
Safeguarding Partnership had developed training which considered child sexual
abuse from the child’s perspective and included why children may retract statements
of sexual abuse and how they can be best supported when they do so. Feedback in
relation to the value and relevance of the training had been positive.

-

Members referred to the child’s retraction of her allegation and the response to it not
being discussed with agency partners and asked what action Children’s Social care
would be taking in the future to make sure this does not happen again.
It was reported that going forward as part of the training there would be multi agency
involvement and the procedures emphasised and shared with agencies and other
local authorities on retractions.

-

A Member expressed concern that the views of the articulate professional parent had
been listened to at the expense of the child’s view in this case.
The learning identified in the Review highlighted the need to be aware of the
possibility of elements of disguised compliance in the responses of some
parents/carers.

-

Reference was made to the support that Social Workers received when dealing with a
case of sexual abuse and it was confirmed that a number of actions from the Case
review for Children’s Social Care included:

Page 11

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

-

Supervision training which had taken place with all team managers in relation
to the principles of quality, effective and reflective supervision.
A Workshop for managers in relation to group supervision using the Signs of
safety methodology had taken place
Supervision audit had been carried out, and a task and finish group had
implemented the recommendations, including changes to the supervision policy.

-

In reply to a question regarding social work support and supervision, it was noted that
staff met with managers every four weeks to reflect and virtual support was available
for practitioners.

-

It was acknowledged that the Safeguarding partners were resolved to act on the
learning and would have a better understanding of this area of work and share in
multi agency training.

The Chair thanked the North Tyneside Safeguarding Children’s Partnership Business
Manager for the Report and for attendance at the meeting.
CES7/21

School Clothing

The Sub-Committee considered a report by the Assistant Director for Education on School
Clothing.
The number of children on income related free school meals had increased from 6225 (Jan
2020 census) to 7025 (Student Support data May 2021).
The Council had started to address this by supplying every child on income related free
school meals with vouchers worth £45.
The vouchers were split into £20 for the school uniform supplier to spend on the logoed item
and a £25 supermarket voucher to buy the generic items.
The vouchers had been split as using supermarkets was cheaper for the generic items than
the uniform suppliers.
Through the engagement work in preparation for the Poverty Intervention Fund it was clear
that the cost of the school day was seen as an issue for school age children.
The second phase of the project was to support schools with some funding to help out other
families who were struggling with school clothing but were not on free school meals.
There was also a stock of new school clothing to give to families who had not received the
vouchers. Most of it was primary aged clothing but there was also stock suitable for secondary
aged children. The stock included shoes, winter coats and PE kits as the project had been
about school appropriate clothing not just uniform. The stock was housed at the Council for
Voluntary Service with access through the Participation Advocacy and Engagement Team and
schools could refer families in for support.
In order to address inequalities, over the coming academic year, a Poverty Proofing the
School Day project would give every school in the borough the opportunity to work with
Children North East to look at their school day. This was a longer term project but would
look at all aspects of the school day and the costs associated with this. The schools

Page 12

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee
themselves would have an individual action plan and the Service would be able to pull
together the picture across the authority to assess what support families needed.
It was noted that Greenfields Community Primary School were changing their uniform so
that families could buy generic items from supermarkets and then purchase a logo from the
school to attach the badge which only cost £1.
A School’s Governing Body decided on a school’s uniform policy and most schools
signposted to local supermarkets.
Many schools had their own uniform clothing schemes or had a collection bin from the
Community School Clothing Scheme.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director of Education for the Report and for attendance at
the meeting.
CES8/21

Work Programme

The Sub-committee received a report which asked Members to consider and agree a work
programme for the municipal year 2021/2022.
A proposed outline work programme was attached at Appendix 1. Members of the Subcommittee were invited to raise any other topics relevant to the remit of the Sub-committee
that they thought should be included in the work programme and the following were
suggested:
-

Impact of Poverty Intervention Fund
Poverty Proofing Audit Findings (January/March)
Early Language Development
Education – Covid catchup – current cohort in school, make sure not underperforming
and long term disadvantage
Mental health refresh – impact on first tranche

It was agreed that these topics together with any additional topics raised by Members would
be scheduled accordingly in consultation with the Chair and Deputy Chair

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Meeting: Children Education and Skills Sub Committee
Date:

9 September 2021

Title:

Educational Update – COVID recovery

Author: Diane Buckle
Service: HECS
Wards affected: All
1.

Purpose of Report
1.1 To provide members of the sub committee with an update on the academic year
2020/2021, the work of Local Authority Officers in their support of schools, and any
impact seen in pupils’ attainment and wellbeing because of COVID.

2.

Introduction
2.1 Education in the academic year 2020/2021 has rapidly evolved to meet the
dynamically changing needs of our children and young people. Local Authority
Officers from a range of departments continued to support schools navigate the
plethora of legislation and guidance documentation presented by government.
2.2 The academic year 2020/2021 was beset by further disruption to pupils’ education,
because of COVID. High rates of outbreak within schools and repeated periods of
enforced isolation led to an extended period of closure in the spring term 2021. It
required schools to move to on-line learning at haste.
2.3 Previous periods of lock down and isolation had enabled most schools to hone their
approaches to home learning and ensure that all pupils had access to appropriate
devices and data. The facilitation of regular ‘teach meets’ by Local Authority officers
and the support of the Research School and ‘Ed Tech demonstrator schools’ ensured
good practice was shared.
2.4 Continuing high levels of infection during the summer term, particularly within the 10
– 24 age range led to further disruption for pupils. By the time schools began summer
holidays over half were deemed in outbreak.

Page 15

2.5 Despite the challenges that COVID has brought, Local Authority officers continue to
work with our schools to support recovery and to tackle the priorities outlined within
the Ambition for Education document to improve outcomes for all our pupils.
2.6 The full extent of the impact of two interrupted academic years of education is yet to
be realised.
3.

Details
Attendance
3.1 Attendance in the autumn term 2020/2021 showed improvement at 2.88%, which
was a positive picture for half terms 1 & 2, and better than 4.93% absence in 19/20
over the same period. This also compares well to North East absence for the same
period of 3.57% and with national at 3.68%. Please see Appendix 1.
3.2 Local Authority officers from the school support team alongside early help
practitioners had prepared well to work with school colleagues and tackle
absenteeism, following the disrupted summer term of 2019/2020 academic year.
Systems were established so schools could refer families causing concern. All
referrals were triaged, and wider support provided for a better return to school.
3.3 Unfortunately, despite best efforts the spring term was spent almost completely in
lockdown, which makes it difficult for data comparisons. We do know that between a
third and half of all pupils continued to attend school during this period under the
category of vulnerable or key worker pupils. This was much higher than rates seen
during first lock down.
3.4 The summer term became increasingly difficult as the impact of increasing COVID
infections and contact tracing affected schools. Such was the extent of the problem
that 48 North Tyneside schools were classified in outbreak as the term ended. There
are no good national comparisons yet to determined what the impact of repeated
school closure has been on North Tyneside schools and their pupils.
3.5 We await to see what the long-term impact will be on pupils’ attendance in school
because of the pandemic. We know that there was an increase in the proportion of
pupils electively home education rising from 90 in 2019/2020 to 112 in 2020/2021 a
23% increase.
Transition
3.6 Pupils transferring to another phase of education had mixed transition arrangements
for a second year. Many arrangements were beset with problems caused by
outbreak, staff absence and changing government guidance as infection rates soared
in the 10 – 19 age range. Schools tried many creative alternatives but found it difficult
to complete anything remotely in keeping with previously detailed transition
arrangements.
3.7 A Y6/7 enhanced transition project run by the Local Authority School Support Team
started off successfully in the summer term. Pupils were identified by their feeder
primary schools as in needed of additional support to improve coping strategies and
prevent exclusion in the autumn term 2021. One of the common factors in identifying
pupils for enhanced transition was social and health care problems, with domestic
violence and parental addiction also common factors. However, some aspects of this

Page 16

programme were curtailed because of increasing infection rates and amended
government guidance which prevented mixing bubbles, as a mechanism to slow the
progress of the virus. To compensate additional time will be front loaded in the
autumn term to support the same pupils as they enter Year 7 and ensure transition
procedures for these pupils are smooth.
Curriculum and Assessment
3.8 The last national comparative data for all our schools’ dates to 2019. Both 2020 and
2021 examination series have been severely disrupted. This year’s results have been
awarded from teacher assessed grades, based upon what pupils have completed
rather than against nationally defined examination outcomes. There are no
accountability measures for a second year against which schools will be judged
compared to national comparative data.
3.9 Local Authority Officers from the secondary team have supported our schools to
ensure the effective deployment of systems for Teacher Assessed Grades 2021
through regular updates, and the establishment of best practice forum and
collaborate working practices. At a strategic level Lisa Cook SIO Secondary worked
with Heads and Senior Leaders to ensure the effective completion of the Centre
Assessed Grade policy including appeals processes, and the creation of a delivery
plan. Subject Advisors worked closely with Heads of English/ Maths/ Science to
support the process of marking, moderation, and standardisation. The Secondary
Team facilitated the collaboration between schools during the Summer Term to
achieve accurate data, schools also used FFT50 for a national data context. All our
schools sent samples to the exam boards for at least 2 subjects, at GCSE Maths or
English GCSE along with one other subject, 2 post 16 courses from each centre were
also requested.
3.10 As a result of the preparation completed, A Level and BTEC exam results have
gone smoothly (10th August) with no further requests for samples. GCSE results (12th
August) were similarly without issue. To date, none of our schools have received a
request for information due to malpractice allegations. we know these have been
received in schools outside of our area.
3.11 Appeals against teacher assessed grades can be made at 2 stages. Stage 1 is a
Centre Review. Any student may submit a request for a centre review on the grounds
that the centre has: failed to follow its procedures properly or consistently in arriving
at that result; made an administrative error in relation to the result. Stage 2 Appeal is
to the Awarding Body and can only be made after completion of Stage 1. For
students applying to Higher Education there is a priority appeal process. We are
aware of only 1 appeal that is ongoing, although this is not preventing access to the
next stage of education employment or training.
3.12 The assessment and identification of the precise impact of COVID continues to be
a priority for all educationalists and particularly challenging for some schools. This will
be a continued focus for Local Authority training and support teams over the coming
year. Whilst some schools have robust gap analysis systems in place and have been
proactive in assessing pupils’ attainment throughout the pandemic, others have been
less successful in their efforts.
3.13 A ‘Different Summer 2020’, primary documents, were created by North Tyneside
Local Authority Advisers and serving practitioners and based on National Curriculum
programmes of study for key stages 1 and 2. They were designed to support subject

Page 17

leaders to plan their curriculum in a more targeted way, by focusing on those
objectives that could be delivered remotely and those that required face to face
teaching for optimum impact. They were provided free to all schools. These were
subsequently extended to include autumn and spring term curriculum plans.
Extremely positive feedback was received by those schools who adopted them, with
teachers reporting that they gave them a clearer understanding of progression in
subjects across year groups and phases. These recovery documents will continue to
be promoted in the autumn term to support transition into the next year group.
3.14 In September 2020, the secondary team produced and shared a detailed paper for
Blended Learning. It drew together best practice internationally and evidence and
research to support the rationale and development of schools own Blended Learning
policies and approaches. This pre-empted subsequent government and Ofsted
guidance for remote learning. Emerging and best practice was shared at
‘Teachmeets’ which were run by the secondary team. These were virtual sessions
where classroom practitioners shared something which worked well for them and
attendees were able to ask practical and developmental questions. This has
developed into a professional collaborative enquiry group of around 50 teachers from
across North Tyneside. A lively and innovative group, which will continue into the
forthcoming academic year.
3.15 To facilitate remote learning, schools were able to access devices for their
disadvantaged pupils, with support from the Local Authority officer team and access
to DfE and locally funded schemes. For example: one high school had devices in
place for every pupil by October 2020 and was able to transition to live learning
seamlessly in January. Educationalists in North Tyneside have embraced the
opportunity to develop their approaches to blended learning and have plans to bring
the best elements of learning in an era of Covid to everyday practice. Google
Classroom to support independent learning has been an impactful development.
3.16 The new Statutory Early Years Framework is in place from 1st September 2021,
following its publication on 31st March 2021. Over the summer term 2021, there was
much high-quality training offered to schools to support implementation. This was
supplemented by an early year’s virtual conference which focused on key elements
of talk. Many excellent materials and templates have been provided by the early
years team to support schools.
3.17 A continuing school focus throughout 2020/2021 has been to maintain as well as
possible approaches to the teaching of reading, particularly developing pupils’ phonic
knowledge. A sample of indicators from in-school data shows that standards have
remained high in most schools, due to a strong emphasis on maintaining quality
teaching through remote learning and for vulnerable pupils attending school. The
next DfE data collection for phonics screening check for year 2 pupils only is in
December 2021. Year 3 pupils who missed their second attempt to pass in year 2,
are not required to take the test, but schools must keep phonics teaching until it is
secured. There will be a phonics screening check in June 2022 as usual, for the
current Y1 & 2 pupils.
3.18 On 1st April 2021, the government announced changes in their guidance for
schools on choosing a systematic synthetic phonics programme. Thus, removing
Letter & Sounds from the validated list of programmes by 2022. For some schools,
there is some work to do on improving their approaches to the teaching of phonics in
line with this new guidance.

Page 18

3.19 Reading for pleasure has had a high priority during lockdown, with creative
approaches used to keep pupils engaged with reading. Those pupils engaged in
pupil voice activities have maintained their enthusiasm for reading. However, there
will be a renewed focus on the teaching of reading in primary and secondary,
following the Ofsted webinars during the summer term & DfE publication on 10 th July
2021 “The Reading framework teaching the foundations of Literacy.” now established
all schools to have a detailed approach to the teaching of reading. Several
Secondary schools have already booked phonics and reading training for SEND
staff.
3.20 Over the course of the year, the retention of mathematical knowledge and skills
has generally been reported to have been more successful. This relates in some way
to the types of activities delivered during periods of remote learning. However,
fluency in applying mathematical skills through discussion and extended problem
solving has been more difficult and is a priority for the new academic year.
Interventions
3.21 Across the academic year, schools have more generally struggled to deliver the
range and frequency of interventions as would previously have been the case. Risk
assessments, staffing shortages and bubble restrictions have made it difficult. That
said, several vulnerable pupils who accessed a school place during lock down have
made accelerated progress due to the more intensive adult interactions.
3.22 Catch up funding has been used in a range of ways as schools saw fit. For
example, some did after school booster classes and others did pre-teaching and
follow up sessions. The national tutoring programme has been used by some schools
with mixed responses: for some it has engaged pupils more and others found it
restrictive in what it offered. There has been a similar picture with schools who used
the academic mentor programme, the success of which very much depends on the
quality of the mentor. This is the central pillar of the government’s recovery
programme and will come with greater flexibility and additional funding in the new
academic year.
Ofsted Inspections
3.23 Schools are preparing for full Ofsted inspections programme to resume in the
autumn term 2021. Several schools received monitoring inspections during the
summer term, only one school was identified as not taking effective action although
this school had several longstanding staff absences.
3.24 From September 2021 all schools will now be part of routine inspection, this
includes our 16 outstanding schools, which have previously been exempt.
Personal Development
3.25 Elaine Robson has worked closely with PHSE/ RSE leads in schools to enable
them to prepare to meet the statutory changes for RSE from April 2021. All schools
should now have the policy approved by Governors and on their website. Curriculum
plans for the delivery of RSE are now in place. Schools have been advised to have
completed their consultation with parents, one secondary school has produced a ‘top
10 facts every parent and carer should know about RSE’ as part of the consultation
process. Elaine has led network meetings and webinars to support and challenge
schools to meet the needs of their children and young people for mental health. The

Page 19

mental health and wellbeing (MHWB) sessions were well attended in the autumn
term 2021 and facilitated schools in their development of MHWB practice.
3.26 The mental health pilot project, led by Lisa Cook and funded by Barnardo’s and
delivered on the Mental Health First Aid England plan, has produced some
interesting results. Fifteen schools took part in the first tranche of training for
universal mental health awareness training. They completed: audits, surveys,
accessed training to increase their staff understanding of Mental Health and created
action plans for improvement. Outcomes from the surveys completed by children and
young people, parents and school staff showed; an increase in awareness of
different types of mental health issues, a better understanding of identifying emerging
needs and being able to signpost to appropriate support. Mental Health Literacy has
improved markedly in a 6 month period. In each of the 15 schools there are 3 or more
mental health first aid trained adults and 5 further adults who have completed mental
health awareness training. The schools met at a network meeting each month
facilitated by Local Authority Officers to support and challenge each other to improve
and to share best practice. The second and third cohorts of schools to complete the
project have been identified and will start the process in the Autumn term 2021.
4. Background Information
The following documents have been used in the compilation of this report and may be
inspected at the offices of the author.




Early Year Statutory Framework
The Reading Framework: Teaching the Foundations of Literacy
DfES Remote Learning expectations

5. Appendices
 Appendix 1 - Attendance data
 Appendix 2 –National GCSE and A level data

Page 20

Appendix 2 Regional GCSE data

England’s A level result 2021 main findings
• Girls got more top grades, 46.9%, than boys 42.1%
• A* and A grades:
Northern Ireland 50.8%
Wales 48.3%
England 44.3%
• Independent schools: 70.1% A* and A grades
• Comprehensive schools: 39% A* and A grades
• London 47.9% A* and A grades
• North East of England 39.2%

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

State-funded secondary
OA
North Tyneside
North East
National
Burnside College
Churchill College
George Stephenson High School
John Spence High School
Longbenton High
Marden Bridge Middle School
Marden High School
Monkseaton High School
Monkseaton Middle School
Norham High School
North Gosforth Academy
Seaton Burn College
St Thomas More Academy
The King's School
Valley Gardens Middle School
Wellfield Middle School
Whitley Bay High School
Colour Code

Page 23

School Centile Boundaries

Overall Absence Trend HT1-2
2006/07
2007/08
2008/09
2009/10
2010/11
2011/12
2012/13
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
6.94%
6.39%
6.89%
6.72%
7.00%
5.42%
5.70%
4.46%
4.58%
4.24%
4.82%
4.88%
4.66%
5.93%
5.03%
7.56%
7.28%
7.69%
7.44%
7.00%
5.92%
6.43%
5.17%
5.38%
4.87%
5.21%
5.61%
5.51%
6.58%
6.29%
7.28%
7.27%
7.34%
6.92%
6.71%
5.46%
5.71%
4.93%
5.06%
4.64%
4.97%
4.98%
4.90%
5.59%
5.69%
7.87%
7.61%
8.74%
7.09%
8.22%
5.95%
6.04%
10.78%
4.89%
8.75%
#N/A
8.72%
4.57%
#N/A
4.07%
3.96%
5.61%
Top Quintile

7.89%
6.86%
7.21%
6.12%
7.99%
5.48%
5.86%
9.64%
4.90%
7.45%
#N/A
8.24%
4.41%
#N/A
3.82%
4.77%
5.08%
2nd Quintile

7.51%
6.95%
7.09%
7.48%
7.56%
6.49%
7.02%
9.36%
5.34%
8.43%
#N/A
9.10%
5.58%
#N/A
3.83%
4.55%
6.54%
3rd Quintile

6.75%
7.41%
5.98%
7.36%
8.04%
6.80%
5.94%
8.46%
5.14%
8.13%
#N/A
7.27%
5.52%
#N/A
5.46%
5.48%
7.16%
4th Quintile

7.93%
7.95%
7.52%
6.91%
8.61%
6.83%
6.27%
8.20%
5.06%
10.73%
#N/A
8.75%
5.63%
#N/A
3.72%
5.44%
6.09%
Bottom

6.52%
6.11%
5.50%
5.77%
6.37%
3.89%
5.15%
6.25%
4.84%
8.08%
#N/A
7.66%
3.99%
#N/A
3.09%
3.90%
4.70%

6.69%
5.80%
6.15%
5.80%
6.89%
4.67%
5.56%
7.55%
5.24%
5.68%
#N/A
7.94%
4.67%
#N/A
3.51%
4.36%
5.19%

5.24%
5.34%
4.74%
3.96%
4.91%
3.60%
4.98%
7.19%
3.88%
5.19%
#N/A
5.79%
4.05%
3.29%
3.01%
3.69%
3.88%

5.21%
4.81%
5.44%
4.17%
5.17%
3.88%
5.31%
6.68%
3.77%
5.31%
#N/A
6.13%
4.21%
3.26%
3.38%
3.96%
4.02%

5.53%
5.24%
4.53%
3.81%
5.58%
4.06%
4.74%
5.08%
4.44%
3.86%
#N/A
5.23%
3.72%
2.82%
3.38%
3.20%
3.57%

5.47%
5.13%
4.93%
5.00%
5.69%
6.11%
4.80%
4.84%
4.38%
5.97%
#N/A
6.97%
4.75%
3.64%
3.71%
3.61%
3.91%

6.25%
5.47%
6.02%
4.87%
4.98%
4.64%
4.60%
5.94%
3.53%
6.84%
#N/A
#N/A
4.85%
3.70%
3.49%
3.97%
4.21%

5.37%
6.20%
4.52%
4.87%
4.37%
3.74%
4.02%
6.83%
4.80%
6.00%
6.52%
#N/A
4.98%
3.05%
3.21%
4.07%
4.36%

6.02%
8.46%
5.54%
6.32%
5.79%
5.22%
5.75%
8.02%
6.06%
5.94%
8.87%
#N/A
5.87%
4.60%
4.34%
3.98%
5.55%

5.64%
7.25%
4.86%
6.78%
5.66%
3.16%
4.71%
7.30%
5.08%
4.43%
9.75%
#N/A
5.00%
2.72%
2.75%
2.88%
4.05%

0.38%
1.21%
0.68%
-0.46%
0.13%
2.06%
1.04%
0.72%
0.98%
1.51%
-0.88%
0.87%
1.88%
1.59%
1.10%
1.50%

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Meeting:

Children, Education and Skills Committee

Date:

9th September 2021

Title:

Poverty Intervention Fund Update

Author:

Jacqueline Laughton
Vicki Nixon

Service:

Corporate Strategy

Ward affected:

All

Tel: 643 5724
Tel: 643 8215

1.

Report Purpose and Background

1.1

As requested by the Children, Education and Skills Committee, this report provides
an update on the use and spend of the Poverty Intervention Fund.

1.2

The purpose of the Fund as agreed by Cabinet on 29 June 2020 is to help to
alleviate the impact of poverty on families and individuals across North Tyneside
with particular emphasis on children, by providing support to those who need it.
Cabinet agreed the following policy objectives for the Fund


to address the financial impacts of poverty by targeting support to areas where
people are struggling to make ends meet to be able to afford the basics or
where they are having to go without certain things which others take for
granted.



to address the social impacts of poverty by targeting support so that people
can play a full role in society and for activities which will have a positive impact



to address the health impacts of poverty by targeting support on relevant
areas such as risk-taking behaviour and mental health and well-being

1.3

On 21 September 2020, Cabinet agreed the approach for the delivery of the Fund.
The delivery of the Fund is overseen by a Steering Group comprised of 1 elected
member per ward (with appropriate arrangements for mixed wards) and also to
include engagement with the Young Mayor/Youth and relevant external
organisations.

1.4

On 21 September 2020, Cabinet also agreed the first priorities and initiatives for the
Fund as proposed by the Steering Group. These were to deliver the Fund in a
phased approach with the first phase focussed on four priorities


for children – focusing on the key impact which living in poverty has in relation
to their experience at school



for older people – focusing on the key impact of not taking up full benefit
entitlement

Page 25



1.5

for families with children – focusing on the key impact of not being able to
afford the essentials of clothing for school and food during school holidays
(where they do not have access to free school meals

In line with these agreed priorities, the Fund has financed the following initiatives in
the 2020/21 financial year. An update on progress of each is set out in section 3 of
the report






Poverty Proofing the School Day (for children)
benefit advice and support for older residents (for older people)
school appropriate clothing (for families with children)
holiday food (for families with children)
Food for older residents (for older people)

1.6

An update is also included in this report on the additional support that has been
provided through the COVID Winter Grant which was introduced as part of the
Government’s package of support due to COVID-19. The Winter Grant payment is
an additional payment which was made to school aged children on free school
meals and has supported the delivery of the aims of the Poverty Intervention Fund
to address the needs of families with children.

1.7

Information is also provided on the Holiday Activity Fund (HAF) which has also been
introduced as part of the Government’s package of support due to Covid-19 and
again has supported the delivery of the aims of the Poverty Intervention Fund

2.

Recommendations

2.1

The Children, Education and Skills Committee is asked to note the content of this
report.

3.

Update on Progress

3.1

Appendix A provides an overview of the allocation of funding within the PIF and
spend to date. Set out below is an overview of the current progress with each of
the PIF initiatives and the related work with the additional Government grant funding
provided to the Authority – the COVID Winter Grant and the Holiday Activity Fund.
Unallocated funding from 2020-21 will be carried forward into 2021-22 as per the
budget proposals agreed by Council.
Poverty Proofing the School Day

3.2

£172,755 was allocated from the Poverty Intervention Fund for this initiative in order
to address the impacts of poverty felt by children and young people at school. The
poverty proofing programme has been run by Children North East since 2011 and
has been successfully previously delivered in a few schools in the borough (funded
directly by schools) Delivered through schools, the programme seeks to better
understand what poverty looks like from a child and young person’s perspective.
Each school involved is fully supported to be able to put in place an action plan to
alleviate this in the school setting and to reduce the stigma and discrimination faced
by children who live in poverty. Funding the programme through the Poverty

Page 26

Intervention Fund means that every school in the borough is able to take part and
there is a consistent experience for our children and young people.
3.3

Success outcomes for the programme include more equity of experience,
opportunity and learning outcomes for pupils who live in poverty. It also leads to
positive outcomes for parents, schools, and teachers. Where the programme has
already been implemented in schools there are improved rates of attendance and
attainment for disadvantaged pupils as well as a direct impact by reducing the cost
of the school experience for pupils and their families, thereby alleviating some of the
pressures on parents in poverty. Where the programme has been delivered there
have also been improvements in relation to mental health and wellbeing amongst
children and young people. Schools have implemented actions such as free musical
instrument tuition for all pupils, supplying bus passes, alternatives to non-uniform
days for fund-raising, not sending debt letters home with pupils and challenging
staff over whether asking pupils to write about their holidays or presents was
appropriate. However, one of the biggest impacts for schools is a cultural shift. One
school told evaluators that previously, they had done things without ‘necessarily
being aware of what the impact on disadvantaged pupils would be’, but that after
the programme, they ‘now consider the impact first’.

3.4

By making the initiative borough wide, it takes into account the fact that in North
Tyneside whilst there are certain parts of the borough which are more deprived than
others, there are also children living in poverty in the more affluent areas. This
approach gives the same opportunity to all children and young people across the
borough regardless of where they live.

3.5

The programme, delivered by Children North East, was due to start in the Autumn
of 2020and a working group has been set up with the Council’s School
Improvement Service to oversee delivery. Information was sent to schools and
initial discussions were held. Due to pressures on school in relation to the
pandemic, the timing of the programme had to be moved back to 2021Children
North East has adapted the programme so that it can be delivered in a Covid
Secure way Four schools have now started on the programme with another four
lined up to follow. This programme will now run through from now and all of the
2021/22 academic year to ensure that no school is disadvantaged due to the impact
of COVID.
Benefit take-up campaign and support for older residents

3.6

£100,000 was allocated from the Poverty Intervention Fund for a benefit take up
campaign and support for older residents. This is to address the issue that impacts
of living in poverty for some individuals and families is compounded by people not
taking up their full entitlement to benefits. This is recognised in particular for older
people (and especially for older people with disabilities) who often struggle to
navigate the often-complex system of benefits and allowances or for whom, the
digital nature of benefits administration and claiming processes are not always easy
to access.

3.7

Delivered through Age UK and Citizens Advice, this initiative includes raising
awareness and providing information to people of what benefit support is available
through proactive communications and marketing activity. It also includes advice

Page 27

workers to work directly with older people to understand their potential entitlement
to benefit as well as supporting them to make a claim.
3.8

Table 1 below shows the breakdown of spend for this initiative
Table 1
CAB provision of advice
AgeUK provision of advice
AgeUK Marketing and communication

Amount of funding
£45,000
£45,000
£10,000

School appropriate clothing
3.9

£253,845 has been allocated from the Poverty Intervention Fund to support families
with the costs of school clothing – uniform, coats and shoes. Families with children
who are living in poverty often struggle to be able to afford the regular costs for
school uniforms, shoes or winter coats and that this can contribute significantly to
the key impacts of poverty. This can be a particular issue where schools require
their own branded items of clothing to be worn as part of their uniform policy. Part of
the funding was used to provide £45 directly to families for every pupil in receipt of
free school meals due to low income. This is being provided through a locally
managed scheme where vouchers) are provided for parents and carers to be able
to purchase the clothing for school. Vouchers of £20 per pupil have been provided
for use at the eight school uniform suppliers across the borough (for branded
uniform items) and vouchers of £25 per pupil have been provided for use in
supermarkets which supply school clothing. This provides both flexibility and choice
for families but also ensures that the funding is directly provided for clothing as
much as possible.

3.10

Additional access to school clothing over and above the £45 per pupil has also
been provided for families in need via the Community School Clothing Scheme.
This is able to be accessed through schools and we have been working closely with
schools to identify those in need.
Holiday food

3.11 £200,000 of the Poverty Intervention Fund was allocated to provide support for
families to meet the costs of food during school holidays. During the October 2020
half term school holiday, we carried out a market engagement exercise to trial
several ways to provide holiday food to children. The trial saw 5 providers
delivering food and activities to children on free school meals. Through this, over
1,700 meals were delivered either face to face or remotely through hamper
provision. The total cost of this activity was £6,646.
3.12

In November 2020, the government announced the COVID Winter Grant which was
to support those most in need by providing support over the winter to children and
households who are experiencing, or at risk of experiencing, poverty, where they
are impacted by the ongoing public health emergency and where alternative
sources of assistance may be unavailable. By using this funding for holiday food,
we were able to redirect the remainder of the amount originally allocated for this

Page 28

purpose in the Poverty Intervention Fund to extend the school clothing scheme and
also to provide funding for food for older people over winter.

Winter food for older people
3.13

By redistributing the funding originally allocated for holiday food (which had been
provided elsewhere through the COVID Winter Grant, £96, 681 was available from
the PIF to support the provision of hot food for older people. This began over the
Christmas period and continued until end March 2021.

3.14

This funding has enabled 8 voluntary and community sector projects to deliver over
8,000 hot meals. Residents have benefitted from extra contact and support from
projects delivering food, so this initiative has also contributed to a reduction in social
isolation amongst older people through the lockdown period.

4.

Impact of COVID Grants on the PIF

4.1

The £170 million COVID Winter Grant Scheme was made available in early
December 2020 for support costs of food, energy, water bills (including sewerage)
and other essentials. North Tyneside Council was allocated £644,988 and this was
able to be used instead of the PIF to support families with children in receipt of free
school meals. £60 was allocated per child and the funding was provided to families
at Christmas. It is intended to cover the holiday periods for the rest of the financial
year. This equated to £15 per week for the two weeks at Christmas, February half
term and the first week of the Easter break. Recently this grant was extended to
cover the second week of Easter so a further £15 has been provide for all eligible
children.

4.2

Government recently announced additional funding to local authorities to provide for
holiday activities via the Holiday Activity Fund. North Tyneside’s allocation of this
fund is £788k. This holiday provision is for children who are entitled to benefitsrelated free school meals. Work is currently underway to develop the model for the
delivery of school holiday activities across North Tyneside in line with the criteria for
the Government funding. This will also contribute to addressing the policy priorities
identified for the PIF.

5.

Background Information
The following background documents have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available from


Poverty Intervention Fund Cabinet Paper June 2020



Poverty Intervention Fund Cabinet Paper September 2020

Page 29

APPENDIX A

Page 30

Initiative

Funding
Allocated

Benefits Take up Campaign and
Support

100k

Holiday food

200k* original
allocation but
only £6,646
spend

Poverty Proofing the School Day

£172,755

School appropriate clothing

£253,845
original
allocation plus
£96, 677

Food for older people

£96,677

Total

£726,600

Remaining funds

£273,400

Comments

£6,646 spend prior to additional funding from Government. £193,362
reallocated to school appropriate clothing initiative and food for older people as
set out below

This amount was allocated based on the number of children eligible for free
school meals. At the time of allocation this was 5,641 children but this has
since risen to 6,625 children

Balance to be carried forward to 2021/22 as per the budget agreed by Council

